

# City and County of San Francisco Meeting Minutes Rules Committee

City Hall 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Members: Aaron Peskin, Rafael Mandelman, Connie Chan

Clerk: Victor Young (415) 554-7723

Monday, September 12, 2022

10:00 AM

**Regular Meeting** 

# IN-PERSON MEETING City Hall, Legislative Chamber, Room 250

(remote access provided)
(remote public comment provided via teleconference)

Present: 3 - Aaron Peskin, Rafael Mandelman, and Connie Chan

The Rules Committee met in regular session, in-person with remote access and public comment via telephone, on Monday, September 12, 2022, with Chair Aaron Peskin presiding. Chair Peskin called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m.

### **Remote Access to Information and Participation**

The Board of Supervisors and its committees convene hybrid meetings that allow in-person attendance, remote access, and public comment via teleconference. Visit the SFGovTV website at (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings and watch meetings on demand or watch live meetings on San Francisco Cable Channels 26, 28, 78 or 99 (depending on your provider). Members of the public may provide public comment in-person or remotely via teleconference (detailed instructions available at: https://sfbos.org/remote-meeting-call).

Members of the public may submit their comments by email to: victor.young@sfgov.org; all comments received will be made a part of the official record. Regularly scheduled Rules Committee Meetings begin at 10:00 a.m. every Monday of each month. Committee agendas and their associated documents are available at https://sfbos.org/committees.

Please visit the Board's website (www.sfbos.org) regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the legislative process. For more information contact the Clerk, Victor Young, at (415) 554-7723 or victor.young@sfgov.org.

### **ROLL CALL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS**

On the call of the roll, Chair Peskin, Vice Chair Mandelman, and Member Chan were noted present. A quorum was present.

### COMMUNICATIONS

Victor Young, Rules Committee Clerk, instructed members of the public, when general public comment is called, to contribute live comments for up to two minutes by dialing the provided telephone number. When connected, they will receive another prompt to dial \* 3 to be added to the queue to speak. Make sure to call from a quiet location, speak clearly and slowly, and turn down your television or radio. Written comments may be submitted through email (victor.young@sfgov.org) or the U.S. Postal Service at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102.

### **AGENDA CHANGES**

There were no agenda changes.

#### REGULAR AGENDA

### **220848** [Appointment, Treasury Oversight Committee - David Martin]

Motion approving/rejecting the Treasurer's nomination of David Martin, for a term ending June 17, 2026, to the Treasury Oversight Committee. (Clerk of the Board)

07/13/22; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

07/26/22; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Rules Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: David Martin; spoke on their qualifications and answered questions raised throughout the discussion. David Pilpel; spoke on the matter.

Chair Peskin moved that this Motion be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE, to approve the mayors nomination for board appointment, waiving the residency requirement and making clarifying and conforming changes. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

Motion approving the Treasurer's nomination of David Martin (residency requirement waived), term ending June 17, 2026, to the Treasury Oversight Committee. (Clerk of the Board)

Chair Peskin moved that this Motion be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

### 220946 [Appointment, Children, Youth and Their Families Oversight and Advisory Committee - Andrea Torrey]

Hearing to consider appointing one member, term ending July 1, 2024, to the Children, Youth and Their Families Oversight and Advisory Committee. (Rules Committee)

Vacant Seat 11, succeeding Jennifer Salerno, term expired, shall be a person who has demonstrated commitment to improving access to and quality of services for children, youth and families, for the unexpired portion of a two-year term ending July 1, 2024.

09/06/22; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Rules Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speaker: Andre Torrey; spoke on their qualifications and answered questions raised throughout the discussion.

Andre Torrey, seat 11, recommended.

PREPARED IN COMMITTEE AS A MOTION appointing Andre Torrey to seat 11.

Chair Peskin moved that this Motion be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote: Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

Chair Peskin moved to rescind the previous motion. The motion carried by the following vote: Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

#### PREPARED IN COMMITTEE AS A MOTION

Motion appointing Andrea Torrey, term ending July 1, 2024, to the Children, Youth and Their Families Oversight and Advisory Committee. (Rules Committee)

Andre Torrey, seat 11, succeeding Jennifer Salerno, term expired, shall be a person who has demonstrated commitment to improving access to and quality of services for children, youth and families, for a two-year term ending July 1, 2024.

### Chair Peskin moved that this Motion be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

### 220427 [Administrative Code - County Veterans Service Officer Role and Duties] Sponsor: Safai

Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to place the County Veterans Service Officer ("Officer") under the Department of Disability and Aging Services (DAS) rather than the Department of Administrative Services; give the Director of the DAS authority to nominate the Officer; update annual reporting requirements of the Officer to the Board of Supervisors and Mayor; and provide administrative support to the Veterans' Affairs Commission.

04/19/22; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 5/19/2022.

04/27/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Bill Barnes (Office of Supervisor Ahsha Safai); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); Cindy Kaufman; provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. David Pilpel; spoke in opposition of the matter. Francisco Da Costa; spoke neither in support nor opposition on the matter.

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING SAME TITLE on Page 4, Line 4, to strike 'purchase or'. The motion carried by the following vote:

### Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

# 220879 [Administrative Code - Workforce Development - Re-Establishing the Committee on City Workforce Alignment]

**Sponsor: Walton** 

Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to re-establish the Committee on City Workforce Alignment; to give the Committee responsibility for planning and coordinating the City's Workforce Development programs; and to make other changes to the procedures governing the planning and implementation of Workforce Development programs.

07/26/22; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 8/25/2022.

08/04/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Office of Economic and Workforce Devemopment for informational purposes

Heard in Committee. Speakers: President Shamann Walton (Board of Supervisors); Joshua Arce (Office of Economic and Workforce Development); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. David Pilpel; spoke neither in support nor opposition on the matter.

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING SAME TITLE, on Page 2, Lines 11-15, to strike Sec. 30.1 (c); Page 7, Line 12, to replace 'March 15, 2023' with 'March 15, 2024'; Page 7, Lines 19-20, to strike 'the Strategic Plan for economic Development approved by the Board of Supervisors'; Page 7, Line 23, to replace 'March 15, 2024, and every year' with 'March 15, 2024 and every two years'; and making other clarifying and conforming changes . The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

### **220539** [Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code - Behested Payments Exceptions] Sponsors: Peskin; Safai, Chan, Walton, Preston and Mar

Ordinance amending the Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code to modify the rules concerning behested payment solicitations, by excepting solicitations made under certain types of City programs to solicit, request, and contractually obligate charitable donations through competitively procured contracts; providing that the receipt of a non-discretionary license, permit, or other entitlement for use does not make a person an interested party; providing that attempting to influence an administrative action does not make a person an interested party; excepting solicitations made in connection with the City's acquisition of real property; and making other clarifying changes.

(Pursuant to Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code, Section 3.204, this matter requires two-thirds vote of the full membership of the Board of Supervisors (8 votes) for passage.)

05/10/22; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 6/9/2022.

05/25/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Department of Elections and Ethics Commission for ifnormational purposes.

06/07/22; SUBSTITUTED AND ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee. Supervisor Peskin introduced a substitute Ordinance bearing a new title.

06/14/22; SUBSTITUTED AND ASSIGNED to Rules Committee. Supervisor Peskin introduced a substitute Ordinance bearing a new title.

06/18/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Rereferred to departments.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Joshua Steinberger; Ms. Learner; Allison Dotco; Jen Curran; spoke in support of the matter. David Pilpel; Francisco Da Costa; Louis Scott; Charles Sten; provided information on the matter.

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be CONTINUED to the September 19, 2022, Rules Committee meeting. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

### 220877 [Administrative Code - Repeal of Legacy Business Registry Fee]

Sponsors: Peskin; Ronen, Chan, Mandelman, Mar, Preston, Stefani and Safai

Ordinance amending the Administrative Code to remove the requirement to charge a Legacy Business Registry administrative fee.

07/26/22; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 8/25/2022.

08/04/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Small Business Commission for review and report.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Richard Crowler (Office of Small Business); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. David Pilpel; provided information on the matter.

Supervisor Mandelman requested to be added as a co-sponsor.

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

#### 220606

## [Administrative Code - Surveillance Technology Policy for Police Department Use of Non-City Entity Surveillance Cameras]

### Sponsors: Mayor; Safai and Mandelman

Ordinance approving Surveillance Technology Policy for Police Department use of non-City entity surveillance cameras and establishing a sunset date one year after the effective date of the ordinance.

05/17/22; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 6/16/2022.

06/14/22; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Police Department for informational purposes.

07/11/22; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Chief William Scott, Asja Steeves, (Police Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Paulina Sayer; Speaker; spoke in support of the matter. Alexa Folger; Magic Altman; Samina Guzman; Commie Mills; Ed Parrolan; Leah Morret; Carolyn Goossen; Kristina Kendari; Yari; Shanti Singh; Speaker; Brian Hillfer; Melanie Ogewalay; Matt Hagle; Matt Kingston; Tracy Rosenberg; Westley Saver; Siras Hall; Jason Lyman; Speaker; Rena Curran; Liam Hoover; Tess Walborn; Laren Renad; Michael Howley; Marshal Waller; Speaker; Nicki Solis; Angela Bokeman; Erica; Christine; Max Kennedy; Jackson; Roman; Ms. Bowler; Speaker; spoke in opposition of the matter. David Pilpel; provided information on the matter.

07/18/22; CONTINUED. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Chief William Scott (Police Department); Supervisor Ahsha Safai (Board of Supervisors); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Speaker; Speaker; Speaker; Selina; Morie Haraviel; Speaker; Tom Smith; Marlene Tran; Nathan Ludkin; ; Mel Naveena; Marina; spoke in support of the matter. Speaker; Speaker; Connie Joan Mills; Ben; Speaker; Mr. Robertson; Siras Hall; Newbai Brown; Jack; Elliot; Michael Howlie; Leah; Yari; Danny; Sarah Lee; Leah McGeever; Danielle; Speaker; Joaquin; Speaker; Lydia; Gary; spoke in opposition of the matter. Sima; Howard Dole; Speaker; Wendy; Mimi; Speaker; Speaker; Maggie; Selina Guzmon; David Pilpel; Speaker; Carolyn Goossen; Speaker; Speaker; provided information on the matter.

07/25/22; AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Asja Steeves and Chief William Scott (Police Department); Anne Pearson (Office of City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Marlene Tran; Randle Scott; David Elliot Lewis; Mike Castro; Speaker; Sam; Maggie; Janet Tarlock; Allita Lao; Cecile Gordborn; Clemmon; Jan; Raymond; Lloyd Silverstein; Selina; spoke in support of the matter. Speaker; Berk Larson; Andrian; Connie Mills; Speaker; Eliana Binder; Gary; Stella Lockman; Milton Miratti; Speaker; Simone Manganelli; Eddie Hernandez; Analisa Fuentes; William; Speaker; Equipto Ellias Sapto; Tracy Rosenberg; Matthew Griggly; Jessica; Leilani; Shaina; Leah McGeever; Speaker; Ellen Gun; Jennifer; Ms. Coleman; Speaker; Jeffrey Dequinto; Ian Hoover; Carolyn Goossen; Speaker; Speaker; Speaker; Speaker; Carolyn; Hope Williams; Speaker; spoke in opposition of the matter. Ms. Chan; Paulina Fayer; Beatrice Wong; Jessica; Wendy; Michelle; Speaker; Speaker; Speaker; Russell Waller (Office of the Public Defender); Katie; Ming Liu Lee; David Pilpel; Shelly Tang; Speaker; Simi Liu; Speaker; Francisco Da Costa; Speaker; Terry; Speaker; provided information on the matter.

#### 07/25/22; CONTINUED AS AMENDED.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Asja Steeves and Assistant Chief David Lazar (Police Department); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Janet Tarla (SF Council of District Merchants); Robert Leung; Paulina Bear; Crystal; Emily Abraham; Speaker; Speaker; Diana Taylor; Bill Walcoin; Vic Furth; Matt Roy; Morene; David Pilpel; Speaker; Jan; spoke in support of the matter. Speaker; Jeff Carlson; Ms. Tron; Connie Jung; Mr. Aberson; Diana Taylor; Speaker; Eddie Hernandez; Speaker; Jennifer John; Speaker; Ms. McGiver; spoke in opposition of the matter. Tracy Rosenberg; Speaker; Christina; Speaker; Jerald DeJohnson; Ellen Dun; Speaker; C. Declark; provided information on the matter.

Supervisor Mandelman requested to be added as a co-sponsor.

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE, on Page 1, Lines 3-4, to replace 'one year' with 'fifteen months'; Page 6, line 21, to replace 'one year' with 'fifteen months'; Page 6, Line 23, to strike 'to be removed'; and making other clarify and conforming changes . The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Peskin, Mandelman, Chan

Ordinance approving Surveillance Technology Policy for Police Department use of non-City entity surveillance cameras and establishing a sunset date fifteen months after the effective date of the ordinance.

(Supervisor Chan dissented in Committee.)

Chair Peskin moved that this Ordinance be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Peskin, Mandelman

Noes: 1 - Chan

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

There being no further business, the Rules Committee adjourned at the hour of 12:42 p.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Rules Committee on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.